
DRAFT MINUTES 

APPROVED ON: 

 

TOWN OF FERRISBURGH 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

DRAFT MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 5TH, 2025 

At Town Offices and On Zoom 

 

Members Present: Norm Smith, Dave Mentzer, Diane Nadon, Katie Quinn, Bob Beach 

Members Absent: Mike Delaney, Shane Lawrence 

Minute Taker: Kyle Rowe 

Town Staff present: Zoning Administrator Katie Hill, Craig Heindel, Conservation Commission 

Chair 

Applicants present: Johnathan Couture, Joseph Owen 

Others Present: Barbara and Paul Eriksen, Scott Baker (Barnard and Gervais) 

 

1. Call to Order 

a. The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

2. Adjustments to and adoption of the agenda 

a. No adjustments were noted. 

 

 

3. Meeting Minutes-Review and approve draft minutes from October 1st, 2025 Meeting 

a. The Board reviewed the minutes  

b. MOTION was made by Bob Beach to approve the October 1st, 2025 Minutes as 

written, which was seconded by Diane Nadon. 

c. VOTE: All in Favor 

 

 

4. Public Hearing: Application Number 25-109: New privacy fence in the Route 7 

Right of Way: Applicant: Joseph Owne: 3395 Route 7: Parcel ID number 20/20/15: 

Ferrisburgh Town Center (FTC-1) & Rural Residential District (RR-2): Site Plan 

Review 

a. The ZBA began consideration of application 25-109, Site Plan Review. Mr. 

Owen, the applicant was recognized and came before the board. 

b. ZA Hill stated this was not a conditional use hearing, noting that there was a 

bylaw that requires it a site plan review, as the fence impacts neighbor’s views. 

c. Mr. Owen explained his project; the fence is at the 4 foot height range, and with 

caps will slightly exceed that.  



d. A photo taken from the neighbors was noted, detailing their impact, as well as a 

letter of support from that same neighbor for the project. 

e. Mr. Owen noted that he had two children and two dogs, and the fence would be 

important for their safety.  

f. There were no additional questions or comments from the board or the audience. 

g. MOTION to close the public hearing was made by Bob Beach, which was 

seconded by Diane Nadon 

h. VOTE: All in Favor 

i. It was noted afterwards that Mr. Owen has his permitting from the State of 

Vermont.  

j. MOTION was made by Bob Beach to approve the permit, which was seconded 

by Diane Nadon 

k. VOTE: All In Favor 

 

5. Public Hearing: Application Number 25-091: Construct, operate, rent, and sell 

commercial flex spaces and multi use facilities for a variety of business types in five 

new buildings totaling 44,400 square feet: Applicant: Vermont Toy Storage, LLC: 

west side of Route 7 between Stage Road and Lewis Creek: Parcel ID number 

05/01/44.11 Lots 2 and 3: Highway Mixed-Use District (HMU-2): Conditional Use 

a. ZA Hill noted that two pieces of additional materials were received today, one 

noting the height of the structure, and the Wetland Permit.  

b. The ZBA began consideration of Application 25-091, Johnathan Couture and his 

engineering consultant Scott Baker were recognized by the board and came 

forward. 

c. The applicants stated they were present to propose Lots 2 and 3 for Development, 

exceeding the 2-acre minimum of the district. The proposed development 

straddles Lots 2 and 3. Water Supply from a shared water supply on Lot 3, 

wastewater would be shared from Lot 1. It was noted that the two Lots were 

sharing those systems. The site plans were shown for the board to reference. 

d. The applicants noted the natural resources on the site, noting it was primarily 

wetlands. The wetlands would be demarcated with woven wire fencing and 7 total 

signs. The other natural resources noted were a stream that flows through the site. 

A Riparian buffer was created on the site, tapering to 25 feet as it approaches the 

development area. The site is a 7 on the agricultural soil, and the applicants have 

already made plans to incorporate that into their Act 250 application. 

e. The applicants noted 5 buildings, total 44,400 square feet. After consultation with 

the Fire Department, the site plan was slightly changed to accommodate the FD’s 

need. This included the placement of the fire pond into the center of the developed 

area, and the buildings become the screening of the area-“courtyard type”. 



f. The closest setback to the north is 53 feet, to the east 266 feet, to the south 102 

feet, and to the west 125 feet.  

g. The design of the buildings was noted by the applicants as more aesthetically 

pleasing, pitched rooves, more of a ‘barn” style. The building height was noted as 

35 feet, 34’  8” at the center. The building size and spacing were also reviewed 

and worked over by the Fire Department, with accommodations made in areas 

such as breakaway doors, and access to all the sides of the building. Additional 

hydrants were also added. The pond would provide approximately 600,000 

gallons for fighting fires in the local area as well. 

h. Applicant Couture noted that this project is only possible with the cooperation of 

other actors, particularly the 60+ acres of conserved land surrounding this 

proposed development. He further noted that he wanted to make this an 

“example” type project, in terms of both design and safety concerns. He noted 

that he was specifically looking for pertinent questions from the board on the 

specifics of the project, of what it was looking to accomplish. 

i. It was noted that the land had been purchased and was owned by the applicants. 

j. The applicant noted that there was a fiscal need for the idea of other businesses to 

make the project financially feasible. A tree service was noted as a potential 

collaborator. Other collaborators fall into three broad categories; 

i. Warehouse style storage 

ii. Service Industry 

iii. Light manufacturing 

k. It was noted that truck storage, but not trucking would be a potential use. It was 

also noted that the businesses would be ideally entirely indoors. Multiple local 

and adjacent businesses were noted as examples. It was noted that the contractor 

yard was present on the application to allow for an easier sale at a later date. 

l. The applicants noted that one of the advantages of this design was that the 

“courtyard” style design would allow the buildings to screen the business 

operations in the center. 

m. It was noted that there were person doors on the buildings, but not significant 

other access points. 

n. The Board stated that it may be important to impose a condition on future 

development, to guard against improper use.  

o. The applicant noted again that the purchaser of this particular type of 

structure/design would have to fit with the performance standards of the other 

businesses present.  

p. Scott Baker noted that he had done some research on how such decisions can be 

written to accommodate the concerns of the board as to improper use. He had 

done some of the research with Act 250 permitting in mind, and had done 

comparison analysis. He noted the similarity in permitting, as most of those 



permits were regulating impacts. He stated that his firm had gotten an Act 250 

permit for a business that transitioned from a printing press to a brewery, and the 

concern in permitting was “maximum impact” e.g. maximum wastewater, peak 

vehicle traffic. This was, in his estimation, to provide enforceable metrics i.e. that 

the product is somewhat immaterial if the maximums are listed. This allows for 

the permitting to be flexible and enforceable.  

q. Bob Beach posed the question of whether the focus of the businesses would be 

more storage or transport based, he gave an example of Vermont Tents.  

i. The applicant responded that he would support a business like that, and 

also noted that the VTRANS permit present on the site is rated for a much 

higher volume of trucks.  

ii. It was further noted that there were no loading docks in the plans.  

r. It was noted that no one has contacted the ZA in regards to this project, neighbors 

or otherwise.  

s. Diane Nadon noted that hours of operation till 11:00 p.m. seemed excessive 

i. It was noted that Act 250 would limit the hours of operation from 6:00 

a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

t. Scott Baker noted that the wildlife corridor issue was never raised to them in the 

permitting process, and that the fence was 4.5 feet tall, (sheep fencing). It was 

noted that signage at the buffer needed to be 30 feet on center, in lieu of fencing, 

which made the transition to fencing easier. It was noted that the fencing was 

primarily for demarcation.  

u. Craig Heindel from the Conservation Commission was recognized by the Board. 

He noted that the fence helps demarcate the boundary of the development with the 

riparian buffer zone. He stated that the fencing plan in this application was well 

designed, and that the fencing only encircles half the parcel, with the other half 

demarcated by signage. He stated that this limits his concern for wildlife passage. 

He asked the Board if the wetland permit included regular maintenance of the 

fencing and signage, and that if it wasn’t, he asked the ZBA to include that in any 

potential permit.  

v. It was noted by the applicant an association document would be generated to 

make sure ownership and maintenance stayed consistent. 

w. It was noted by the applicant that the lights on the sides of the buildings aren’t 

necessarily intended to stay on 24 hours a day, and they may be on photo sensors 

during the day, and motion sensors or timer for the nighttime. Applicant Couture 

noted that lighting will be an important consideration for the safety of the 

inventory stored at the facility, and that some 24-hour lighting may be vital for 

that.  



x. Dave Mentzer noted that it will be a balance between concerns on nuisance and 

the needs of the facility. He noted that glare or unshielded lighting will be more of 

the concern rather than light trespass. 

y. Scott Baker noted that the shielded lights will help prevent those types of issue, as 

well as careful placement. 

z. Norm Smith recognized members of the public 

i.  Barbara and Paul Erikson of Marine Plus noted that this plan is great, and 

lighting seems reasonable for the size of the complex. They noted that the 

plans are beautiful, and the neighbors are receptive. They noted that there 

have been multiple break-ins along Route 7, and that safety should be a 

prime concern.  

aa. Craig Heindel noted that the wetland permit may not have the necessary specifics 

for some the requirements, and that the ZBA should consider adding them if it 

doesn’t. 

bb. ZA Hill noted that logistically this is an interesting and complex permit, and there 

maybe multiple steps required as each business comes into being. Also, it will be 

important to have clear goals and enforceable regulations for her to enforce. 

cc. Dave Mentzer noted that mixed use is a good use of space, but that mitigating the 

downsides becomes the job of the ZBA.  

dd. ZA Hill added that it may be important for a lighting plan to be submitted as part 

of the conditional permitting, not to hold up the permit, and as a separate item. 

ee. It was noted that specifics of the lighting will need to be specified, and that the 

adoption of a condition into the approval that the ZA can enforce. It was noted the 

applicant would be happy to put it on the plan. Dave Mentzer noted that the 

concern was the floodlights along the building, and it was noted that a change in 

lighting in the future may require additional review.  

ff. It was again noted by Applicant Baker that Act 250-esque permitting will allow 

the flexibility for permitting to be successful for all the various uses of the 

development. 

gg. Applicant Couture noted that he would be flexible with the Board and would 

assist with further questions if needed. 

hh. Norm Smith noted that the applicants ask for flexibility makes the boards 

decisions difficult, thinking about the next person who may potentially own that 

parcel but that the Board would work as quickly as possible on a decision. 

ii. It was noted that various aspects of this project will have to come before the board 

for additional conditional use. 

jj. It was noted generally that the Board is supportive of the project, but creating the 

decision will require deliberation. 

kk. Notes from the site visit were requested to be entered into the record; 



i. Katie Quinn stated that she and Dave Mentzer, as well as the applicants 

and the Ferrisburgh Fire Chief conducted a site visit. She noted that she is 

curious why the neighbors closer to route 7 were not more involved in 

this.  

ii. Dave added that it’s difficult for a ZBA to make open ended criteria for a 

ZA to be able to enforce.  

ll. Bob Beach provided some history of the site, and the VTRANs ownership of the 

site along Route 7, and noted that the proposed development is a much smaller 

footprint than the VTRANs original plan.  

mm. MOTION was made by Bob Beach to close the public hearing, seconded 

by Diane Nadon 

nn. VOTE: All in Favor 

 

6. Public Comment 

a. No Public Comment was noted. 

 

7. Other Business 

a. Review Act 250 Municipal Impact Questionnaire for Application 25-091 

i. ZA Hill reviewed the questionnaire with the Board, and stated that the 

Town has to weigh in on the services offered to the applicants. She noted 

that the Town doesn’t offer any services to the parcels. No comments were 

noted by the Board on the Questionnaire. 

 

8. MOTION was made by Dave Mentzer to enter Deliberative Session at 8:35 p.m., 

seconded by Katie Quinn 

a. VOTE: All in Favor 

b. The Board ended deliberative session at 9:00 p.m. 

 

9. Confirmation of next meeting and events of interest: 

a. Wednesday, December 3rd, 2025, at 7:00 p.m.-Regular Monthly ZBA meeting 

 

10. Adjourn 

a. MOTION was made by Diane Nadon to adjourn at 9:01 p.m., seconded by Dave 

Mentzer 

b. VOTE: All in Favor 

c. The Meeting adjourned at 9:01 p.m. 


